

REPRINTED

*Reprinted 4/78*

FILED APR 6 1978

SENATE FILE 2233

By COMMITTEE ON BUDGET

Passed Senate, Date 4-11-78 (p. 817) Passed House, Date \_\_\_\_\_

Vote: Ayes 29 Nays 1 Vote: Ayes \_\_\_\_\_ Nays \_\_\_\_\_

Approved May 15, 1978

### A BILL FOR

1 An Act changing fees for designated safety inspections and  
2 licenses conducted or issued under the jurisdiction of the  
3 commissioner of labor.

4 BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF IOWA:

- 5
- 6
- 7
- 8
- 9
- 10
- 11
- 12
- 13
- 14
- 15
- 16
- 17
- 18
- 19
- 20
- 21
- 22
- 23
- 24
- 25

1 Section 1. Section eighty-eight A point four (88A.4),  
2 Code 1977, is amended to read as follows:

3 88A.4 PERMIT AND INSPECTION FEES. Annual inspection fees  
4 under this chapter shall be as follows:

5 1. Permit fees, ~~ten~~ fifteen dollars per year.

6 2. Mechanical and electrical inspection fees for amusement  
7 rides and devices, ~~forty-dollars-for-each-inspection.~~

8 a. For rides which are designed for seventy-five pounds  
9 or less per passenger unit, fifty dollars for each inspection.

10 b. For rides which are designed for seventy-five pounds  
11 or more and for which the manufacturer's recommended assembly  
12 time is less than forty work hours, seventy-five dollars for  
13 each inspection.

14 c. For rides for which the manufacturer's recommended  
15 assembly time is forty work hours or more, one hundred dollars  
16 for each inspection.

17 3. Electrical inspection of concessions, booths, and  
18 amusement devices fees, ~~fifteen~~ twenty-five dollars each.

19 4. Special inspectors authorization fee, two dollars each.  
20 The special inspectors authorization shall allow a person  
21 to perform inspections only on rides, devices, and concession  
22 booths of an operator who makes the request for the special  
23 inspectors authorization.

24 Sec. 2. Section eighty-nine point seven (89.7), subsec-  
25 tions one (1), two (2), three (3), four (4) and five (5),  
26 Code 1977, are amended to read as follows:

27 1. Boilers having a working pressure to seventy pounds  
28 per square inch, ~~ten~~ twenty-five dollars for ~~one~~ each boiler  
29 ~~and-eight-dollars-for-each-additional-boiler-of-like-size~~  
30 ~~when-set-in-batteries.~~

31 2. Boilers having a working pressure of seventy-one pounds  
32 to and including one hundred fifty pounds per square inch,  
33 ~~twelve~~ twenty-nine dollars for ~~one~~ each boiler ~~and-ten-dollars~~  
34 ~~for-each-additional-boiler-of-like-size-when-set-in-batteries.~~

35 3. Boilers having a working pressure of one hundred fifty-

1 one pounds to four hundred fifty pounds per square inch,  
2 ~~fourteen~~ thirty-three dollars for ~~one~~ each boiler and ~~twelve~~  
3 ~~dollars-for-each-additional-boiler-of-like-size-when-set-in~~  
4 ~~batteries.~~

5 4. Boilers having a working pressure of four hundred  
6 fifty-one pounds and excess per square inch, ~~eighteen~~ forty-  
7 one dollars for ~~one~~ each boiler and ~~twelve-dollars-for-each~~  
8 ~~additional-boiler-of-like-size-when-set-in-batteries.~~

9 5. Steam stills, tanks, jacket kettles, sterilizers and  
10 all other reservoirs fired or unfired having a working pressure  
11 in excess of fifteen pounds per square inch, shall be charged  
12 for ~~the-first~~ each piece of equipment as follows: Fifteen  
13 pounds to seventy pounds per square inch, ten dollars; seventy-  
14 one pounds to one hundred fifty pounds per square inch, twelve  
15 dollars; one hundred fifty-one pounds to four hundred fifty  
16 pounds per square inch, fourteen dollars. ~~Additional-equipment~~  
17 ~~shall-be-charged-for-at-the-same-rate-as-boilers-~~

18 Sec. 3. Section ninety-five point four (95.4), Code 1977,  
19 is amended to read as follows:

20 95.4 FEE. The annual license fee shall be ~~fifty~~ seventy-  
21 five dollars.

22 Sec. 4. Section one hundred four point three (104.3),  
23 subsection one (1), Code 1977, is amended by striking para-  
24 graph k.

25 Sec. 5. Section one hundred four point thirteen (104.13),  
26 Code 1977, is amended by striking the section and inserting  
27 in lieu thereof the following:

28 104.13 FEES. The commissioner shall charge and collect  
29 fees for permits and inspections required by this chapter  
30 as follows:

31 1. For each installation permit:

32 a. For elevators, moving walks and escalators, fifty-  
33 five dollars plus one dollar for each thousand dollars or  
34 fraction thereof of assessed valuation over forty thousand  
35 dollars.

1 b. For dumbwaiters, fifteen dollars plus one dollar for  
2 each thousand dollars or fraction thereof of assessed valuation  
3 over ten thousand dollars.

4 2. For a major alteration permit, twenty-five dollars  
5 for each piece of equipment.

6 3. For an annual inspection, installation inspection or  
7 reinspection for elevators, moving walks, escalators and  
8 dumbwaiters, twenty dollars plus three dollars for each landing  
9 in the facility.

10 4. For an annual operating permit, five dollars for each  
11 piece of equipment.

12 5. For a temporary operating permit, five dollars for  
13 each piece of equipment.

14 Sec. 6. The provisions of sections two (2) through five  
15 (5) of this Act are effective July 1, 1978.

16 Sec. 7. This Act shall take effect and be in force from  
17 and after its publication in the Ankeny Press-Citizen, a  
18 newspaper published in Ankeny, Iowa, and in The Cedar Valley  
19 Daily Times, a newspaper published in Vinton, Iowa.

20 EXPLANATION

21 This bill changes current permit and inspection fees for  
22 amusement rides and devices.

23 Section 2 changes fees for boiler inspections. Section  
24 3 increases the license fee for private employment agencies.

25 Section 5 codifies fees for inspections of elevators,  
26 moving walks, escalators and dumbwaiters. The amounts are  
27 in most all cases the same as present fees which were es-  
28 tablished by rule.

29  
30  
31  
32  
33  
34  
35

SENATE FILE 2233

S-5512

1 Amend Senate File 2233, page 2, by striking lines  
2 23 through page 3, line 13, and inserting in lieu  
3 thereof the following: "subsection one (1), paragraph  
4 k, Code 1977, is amended to read as follows:  
5 k. The amount of fees charged and collected for  
6 inspection, permits, and licenses. Fees shall be set  
7 at an amount sufficient to cover costs as determined  
8 from consideration of the reasonable time required to  
9 conduct an inspection, reasonable hourly wages paid  
10 to inspectors, and reasonable transportation and  
11 similar expenses."

S-5512 FILED *Adopted 4/11 (p. 217)* BY LUCAS J. DE KOSTER  
APRIL 10, 1978 WILLIAM D. PALMER

SENATE FILE 2233

H-5992

1 Amend Senate File 2233 as follows:  
2 1. Page 1, by inserting before line 1 the  
3 following:  
4 "Section 1. Section eighty-eight A point one  
5 (88A.1), subsection seven (7), Code 1977, is amended  
6 to read as follows:  
7 7. "Concession booth" means a structure, or  
8 enclosure, located used at a more than one fair or  
9 carnival from which amusements are offered to the  
10 public."  
11 2. By renumbering the remaining sections and  
12 correcting internal references in accordance with  
13 this amendment.

H-5992 FILED *Withdrawn* BY SCHROEDER of Pottawattamie  
April 11, 1978 *4/23 (1984)* WYCKOFF of Benton  
HUSAK of Tama  
HARBOR of Mills

SENATE FILE 2233

By COMMITTEE ON BUDGET

*Substituted for H.F. 2218*

(AS AMENDED AND PASSED BY THE SENATE APRIL 11, 1978)

Passed Senate, Date 5-2-78 (p. 1181) Passed House, Date 4-27-78 (p. 1986)

Vote: Ayes 45 Nays 0 Vote: Ayes 62 Nays 17

Approved May 15, 1978

*Repassed House 5-2-78 (p. 2176)*  
80 - 8

## A BILL FOR

1 An Act changing fees for designated safety inspections and  
2 licenses conducted or issued under the jurisdiction of the  
3 commissioner of labor.

4 BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF IOWA:

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

\_\_\_\_\_ = New Language  
by the Senate

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

6259 7 Section 1. Section eighty-eight A point four (88A.4),  
1  
2 Code 1977, is amended to read as follows:

3 88A.4 PERMIT AND INSPECTION FEES. Annual inspection fees  
4 under this chapter shall be as follows:

6377-5 1. Permit fees, ~~ten~~ fifteen dollars per year.

6 2. Mechanical and electrical inspection fees for amusement  
7 rides and devices, ~~forty-dollars-for-each-inspection.~~

8 a. For rides which are designed for seventy-five pounds  
9 or less per passenger unit, fifty dollars for each inspection.

10 b. For rides which are designed for seventy-five pounds  
11 or more and for which the manufacturer's recommended assembly  
12 time is less than forty work hours, seventy-five dollars for  
13 each inspection.

14 c. For rides for which the manufacturer's recommended  
15 assembly time is forty work hours or more, one hundred dollars  
16 for each inspection.

6315- 17 3. Electrical inspection of concessions, booths, and  
18 amusement devices fees, ~~fifteen~~ twenty-five dollars each.

19 4. Special inspectors authorization fee, two dollars each.  
20 The special inspectors authorization shall allow a person  
21 to perform inspections only on rides, devices, and concession  
22 booths of an operator who makes the request for the special  
23 inspectors authorization.

24 Sec. 2. Section eighty-nine point seven (89.7), subsec-  
25 tions one (1), two (2), three (3), four (4) and five (5),  
26 Code 1977, are amended to read as follows:

27 1. Boilers having a working pressure to seventy pounds  
28 per square inch, ~~ten~~ twenty-five dollars for one each boiler  
29 ~~and-eight-dollars-for-each-additional-boiler-of-like-size~~  
30 ~~when-set-in-batteries.~~

31 2. Boilers having a working pressure of seventy-one pounds  
32 to and including one hundred fifty pounds per square inch,  
33 twelve twenty-nine dollars for one each boiler ~~and-ten-dollars~~  
34 ~~for-each-additional-boiler-of-like-size-when-set-in-batteries.~~

35 3. Boilers having a working pressure of one hundred fifty-

1 one pounds to four hundred fifty pounds per square inch,  
 2 ~~fourteen thirty-three~~ dollars for one each boiler and ~~twelve~~  
 3 ~~dollars-for-each-additional-boiler-of-like-size-when-set-in~~  
 4 batteries.

5 4. Boilers having a working pressure of four hundred  
 6 fifty-one pounds and excess per square inch, ~~eighteen~~ forty-  
 7 one dollars for one each boiler and ~~twelve-dollars-for-each~~  
 8 ~~additional-boiler-of-like-size-when-set-in-batteries.~~

9 5. Steam stills, tanks, jacket kettles, sterilizers and  
 10 all other reservoirs fired or unfired having a working pressure  
 11 in excess of fifteen pounds per square inch, shall be charged  
 12 for ~~the-first~~ each piece of equipment as follows: Fifteen  
 13 pounds to seventy pounds per square inch, ten dollars; seventy-  
 14 one pounds to one hundred fifty pounds per square inch, twelve  
 15 dollars; one hundred fifty-one pounds to four hundred fifty  
 16 pounds per square inch, fourteen dollars. ~~Additional-equipment~~  
 17 ~~shall-be-charged-for-at-the-same-rate-as-boilers-~~

18 Sec. 3. Section ninety-five point four (95.4), Code 1977,  
 19 is amended to read as follows:

20 95.4 FEE. The annual license fee shall be forty seven-  
 21 ty dollars.

22 Sec. 4. Section one hundred four point three (104.3),  
 23 subsection one (1), paragraph k, Code 1977, is amended to  
 24 read as follows:

25 k. The amount of fees charged and collected for inspection,  
 26 permits, and licenses. Fees shall be set at an amount  
 27 sufficient to cover costs as determined from consideration  
 28 of the reasonable time required to conduct an inspection,  
 29 reasonable hourly wages paid to inspectors, and reasonable  
 30 transportation and similar expenses.

31 Sec. 5. The provisions of sections two (2) through four  
 32 (4) of this Act are effective July 1, 1978.

33 Sec. 6. This Act shall take effect and be in force from  
 34 and after its publication in the Ankeny Press-Citizen, a  
 35 newspaper published in Ankeny, Iowa, and in The Cedar Valley

1 Daily Times, a newspaper published in Vinton, Iowa.

2 EXPLANATION

3 This bill changes current permit and inspection fees for  
4 amusement rides and devices.

5 Section 2 changes fees for boiler inspections. Section  
6 3 increases the license fee for private employment agencies.

7 Section 5 codifies fees for inspections of elevators,  
8 moving walks, escalators and dumbwaiters. The amounts are  
9 in most all cases the same as present fees which were es-  
10 tablished by rule.

11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26  
27  
28  
29  
30  
31  
32  
33  
34  
35

SF 2233  
dd/slc/

SENATE FILE 2233

H-6239

- 1 Amend Senate File 2233, as amended, passed and
- 2 reprinted by the Senate as follows:
- 3 1. Page 1, by inserting before line 1 the follow-
- 4 ing:
- 5 "Section 1. Section eighty-eight A point one
- 6 (88A.1), subsection seven (7), Code 1977, is amended
- 7 to read as follows:
- 8 7. "Concession booth" means a structure, or
- 9 enclosure, ~~located~~ used at a more than one fair or
- 10 carnival from which amusements are offered to the
- 11 public."
- 12 2. By renumbering the remaining sections and
- 13 correcting internal references in accordance with
- 14 this amendment.

H-6239 FILED *Adopted 4/27* BY SCHROEDER of Pottawattamie  
 APRIL 24, 1978 *(p. 1984)*

SENATE FILE 2233

H-6375

- 1 Amend Senate File 2233 as follows:
- 2 1. Page 1, line 17, by striking the word
- 3 "concessions," and inserting in lieu thereof the
- 4 following "~~concessions,~~ concession".

H-6375 FILED, ADOPTED BY SPEAR of Lee  
 BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT  
 APRIL 27, 1978 *(p. 1984)*

SENATE FILE 2233

H-6376

- 1 Amend Senate File 2233 as amended, passed and
- 2 reprinted by the Senate as follows:
- 3 1. Page 2, line 12, by striking the words "for each
- 4 piece of equipment" and inserting in lieu thereof
- 5 the words "~~for each piece of equipment~~".
- 6 2. Page 2, line 12, by inserting after the word
- 7 "follows" the words "for each piece of equipment".

H-6376 FILED *Adopted 4/27* BY WYCKOFF of Benton  
 APRIL 27, 1978 *(p. 1985)*

SENATE FILE 2233

H-6377

- 1 Amend Senate File 2233, as amended, passed and
- 2 reprinted by the Senate, as follows:
- 3 1. Page 1, by striking line 5 and inserting in
- 4 lieu thereof the following:
- 5 "1. Permit fees, ~~ten dollars per year.~~
- 6 a. One through ten rides, or devices or con-
- 7 cessions, ten dollars.
- 8 b. Eleven or more rides, or devices or con-
- 9 cessions, twenty dollars."

H-6377 FILED *Adopted 4/27* BY LAGESCHULTE of Bremer  
 APRIL 27, 1978 *(p. 1985)* WYCKOFF of Benton  
 DIELEMAN of Marion

HOUSE AMENDMENT TO SENATE FILE 2233

S-5720

1 Amend Senate File 2233, as amended, passed and  
2 reprinted by the Senate as follows:

3 1. Page 1, by inserting before line 1 the  
4 following:

5 "Section 1. Section eighty-eight A point one  
6 (88.1), subsection seven (7), Code 1977, is amended  
7 to read as follows:

8 7. "Concession booth" means a structure, or  
9 enclosure, ~~located~~ used at a more than one fair or  
10 carnival from which amusements are offered to the  
11 public."

12 2. Page 1, by striking line 5 and inserting in  
13 lieu thereof the following:

14 "1. Permit fees, ~~ten dollars per year.~~

15 a. One through ten rides, or devices or  
16 concessions, ten dollars.

17 b. Eleven or more rides, or devices or concessions,  
18 twenty dollars."

19 3. Page 1, line 17, by striking the word  
20 "concessions," and inserting in lieu thereof the  
21 following "~~concessions,~~ concession".

5735

22 4. Page 2, line 12, by striking the words "for  
23 each piece of equipment" and inserting in lieu thereof  
24 the words "~~for piece of equipment~~".

25 5. Page 2, line 12, by inserting after the word  
26 "follows" the words "for each piece of equipment".

5755

27 6. By renumbering the remaining sections and  
28 correcting internal references in accordance with  
29 this amendment.

S-5720 FILED  
APRIL 28, 1978

RECEIVED FROM THE HOUSE

*Senate amended (5755) & Covered 5/2 (p. 1101)*

SENATE FILE 2233

S-5735

1 Amend the House amendment, S-5720, to Senate File  
2 2233 as amended, passed and reprinted by the Senate  
3 as follows:

4 1. Page 1, by inserting after line 21 the follow-  
5 ing:

6 "\_\_\_\_. Page 1, by inserting after line 23 the  
7 following section:

8 "Sec. \_\_\_\_\_. Section eighty-nine point three (89.3),  
9 subsection one (1), Code 1977, as amended by House  
10 File two thousand sixty-nine (2069), section four  
11 (4), as enacted by the Sixty-seventh General Assembly,  
12 1978 Session, is amended by adding the following new  
13 lettered paragraph:

14 NEW LETTERED PARAGRAPH. Steam boilers of a mini-  
15 ature model locomotive or boat or tractor or stationary  
16 engine constructed and maintained as a hobby and not  
17 for commercial use, that have an inside diameter of  
18 twelve inches or less and a grate area not exceeding  
19 one square foot and that are equipped with a safety  
20 valve of adequate capacity, a water level indicator  
21 and a pressure gauge."

S-5735 FILED *withdrawn 5/2 (p. 1151)* BY JOAN ORR  
MAY 1, 1978

SENATE FILE 2233

S-5755

1 Amend the House amendment, S-5720, to Senate File  
2 2233 as amended, passed and reprinted by the Senate  
3 as follows:  
4 1. Page 1, by inserting after line 26 the follow-  
5 ing:  
6 "\_\_\_\_\_. Page 2, by inserting after line 17 the  
7 following section:  
8 "Sec. \_\_\_\_\_. Section eighty-nine point seven (89.7),  
9 Code 1977, as amended by House File two thousand  
10 sixty-nine (2069), section eight (8), as enacted by  
11 the Sixty-seventh General Assembly, 1978 Session,  
12 is amended by adding the following new subsection:  
13 NEW SUBSECTION. Notwithstanding the provisions  
14 of subsection two (2) of this section, the fee for  
15 miniature model boilers constructed and maintained  
16 as a hobby and not for commercial use that have an  
17 inside diameter of twelve inches or less and a grate  
18 area not exceeding one square foot shall be twelve  
19 dollars."

S-5755 FILED & ADOPTED (p. 1151) BY JOAN ORR  
MAY 2, 1978

SENATE AMENDMENT TO  
HOUSE AMENDMENT TO  
SENATE FILE 2233

H-6463

1 Amend the House amendment, S-5720, to Senate File  
2 2233 as amended, passed and reprinted by the Senate  
3 as follows:  
4 1. Page 1, by inserting after line 26 the follow-  
5 ing:  
6 "\_\_\_\_\_. Page 2, by inserting after line 17 the  
7 following section:  
8 "Sec. \_\_\_\_\_. Section eighty-nine point seven (89.7),  
9 Code 1977, as amended by House File two thousand  
10 sixty-nine (2069), section eight (8), as enacted by  
11 the Sixty-seventh General Assembly, 1978 Session,  
12 is amended by adding the following new subsection:  
13 NEW SUBSECTION. Notwithstanding the provisions  
14 of subsection two (2) of this section, the fee for  
15 miniature model boilers constructed and maintained  
16 as a hobby and not for commercial use that have an  
17 inside diameter of twelve inches or less and a grate  
18 area not exceeding one square foot shall be twelve  
19 dollars."

H-6463 FILED  
RECEIVED FROM SENATE  
MAY 2, 1978

*Amended Senate File 2233 (p. 270)*

## SENATE FILE 2233

## AN ACT

CHANGING FEES FOR DESIGNATED SAFETY INSPECTIONS AND LICENSES  
CONDUCTED OR ISSUED UNDER THE JURISDICTION OF THE COMMISSIONER OF LABOR.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF IOWA:

Section 1. Section eighty-eight A point one (88A.1), subsection seven (7), Code 1977, is amended to read as follows:

7. "Concession booth" means a structure, or enclosure, located used at a more than one fair or carnival from which amusements are offered to the public.

Sec. 2. Section eighty-eight A point four (88A.4), Code 1977, is amended to read as follows:

88A.4 PERMIT AND INSPECTION FEES. Annual inspection fees under this chapter shall be as follows:

1. Permit fees, ~~ten dollars per year.~~

a. One through ten rides, or devices or concessions, ten dollars.

b. Eleven or more rides, or devices or concessions, twenty dollars.

2. ~~Mechanical and electrical inspection fees for amusement rides and devices, forty dollars for each inspection.~~

a. For rides which are designed for seventy-five pounds or less per passenger unit, fifty dollars for each inspection.

b. For rides which are designed for seventy-five pounds or more and for which the manufacturer's recommended assembly time is less than forty work hours, seventy-five dollars for each inspection.

c. For rides for which the manufacturer's recommended assembly time is forty work hours or more, one hundred dollars

for each inspection.

3. ~~Electrical inspection of concessionary concession booths, and amusement devices fees, fifteen~~ twenty-five dollars each.

4. Special inspectors authorization fee, two dollars each. The special inspectors authorization shall allow a person to perform inspections only on rides, devices, and concession booths of an operator who makes the request for the special inspectors authorization.

Sec. 3. Section eighty-nine point seven (89.7), subsections one (1), two (2), three (3), four (4) and five (5), Code 1977, are amended to read as follows:

1. Boilers having a working pressure to seventy pounds per square inch, ~~ten~~ twenty-five dollars for one each boiler ~~and eight dollars for each additional boiler of like size when set in batteries.~~

2. Boilers having a working pressure of seventy-one pounds to and including one hundred fifty pounds per square inch, ~~twelve~~ twenty-nine dollars for one each boiler ~~and ten dollars for each additional boiler of like size when set in batteries.~~

3. Boilers having a working pressure of one hundred fifty-one pounds to four hundred fifty pounds per square inch, ~~fourteen~~ thirty-three dollars for one each boiler ~~and twelve dollars for each additional boiler of like size when set in batteries.~~

4. Boilers having a working pressure of four hundred fifty-one pounds and excess per square inch, ~~eighteen~~ forty-one dollars for one each boiler ~~and twelve dollars for each additional boiler of like size when set in batteries.~~

5. Steam stills, tanks, jacket kettles, sterilizers and all other reservoirs fired or unfired having a working pressure in excess of fifteen pounds per square inch, shall be charged ~~for the first piece of equipment~~ as follows for each piece of equipment: Fifteen pounds to seventy pounds per square

inch, ten dollars; seventy-one pounds to one hundred fifty pounds per square inch, twelve dollars; one hundred fifty-one pounds to four hundred fifty pounds per square inch, fourteen dollars. ~~Additional equipment shall be charged for at the same rate as boilers.~~

Sec. 4. Section eighty-nine point seven (89.7), Code 1977, as amended by House File two thousand sixty-nine (2069), section eight (8), as enacted by the Sixty-seventh General Assembly, 1978 Sossion, is amended by adding the following new subsection:

NEW SUBSECTION. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection two (2) of this section, the fee for miniature model boilers constructed and maintained as a hobby and not for commercial use that have an inside diameter of twelve inches or less and a grate area not exceeding one square foot shall be twelve dollars.

Sec. 5. Section ninety-five point four (95.4), Code 1977, is amended to read as follows:

95.4 FEB. The annual license fee shall be fifty seventy-five dollars.

Sec. 6. Section one hundred four point three (104.3), subsection one (1), paragraph k, Code 1977, is amended to read as follows:

k. The amount of fees charged and collected for inspection, permits, and licenses. Fees shall be set at an amount sufficient to cover costs as determined from consideration of the reasonable time required to conduct an inspection, reasonable hourly wages paid to inspectors, and reasonable transportation and similar expenses.

Sec. 7. The provisions of sections two (2) through six (6) of this Act are effective July 1, 1978.

Sec. 8. This Act shall take effect and be in force from and after its publication in the Ankeny Press-Citizen, a

newspaper published in Ankeny, Iowa, and in The Cedar Valley Daily Times, a newspaper published in Vinton, Iowa.

\_\_\_\_\_  
ARTHUR A. NEO  
President of the Senate

\_\_\_\_\_  
DALE H. COCHRAN  
Speaker of the House

I hereby certify that this bill originated in the Senate and is known as Senate File 2233, Sixty-seventh General Assembly.

\_\_\_\_\_  
KEVIN P. LIGHT  
Acting Secretary of the Senate

Approved May 15, 1978

\_\_\_\_\_  
ROBERT D. RAY  
Governor